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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

X .
REVISE CLOTHING, INC., : | CV 1 O 6 1 6 ;
Plaintiff, : CQ Zion No. '
: ECE CASE
v. : COMPLAINT
WET JEANS AND JEAN CITY USA.,
Defendants. :
X

Plaintiff Revise Clothing Inc. (“Plaintiff”’} as and for its complaint against Defendants,
‘Wet Jeans and Jean City USA (“Jean City”) (collectively “Defendants™), respectfully alleges as

follows:

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief and damages based upon, infer alia, Defendants’

infringement of Plaintiff's VANILLA STAR® trademark..

2. As more specifically set forth below, Plaintiff owns a Class 25 federal trademark
registration for the mark VANILLA STAR® (Reg. No. 2762901). This registration has been in
full force and effect since the registratioﬁ date of September 9, 2003 and has been in use in

interstate commerce since at least as early as October 5, 2002.
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3. Upon information and belief, Defendants are presently selling clothing bearing the
mark VANILLA JEANS thereon and advertising the same.
4, Such use 1s an infringement of Plaintiff’s prior and paramount rights in and to the
confusingly similar mark VANILLA STAR®, for which Plaintiff owns a federal trademark X
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registration. Upon information and belief, Defendants had never used the mark VANILLA,
standing alone or in connection with other terms, on apparel as a source identifier (i.e., asa -

trademark) prior to Plaintiff’s date of first use.

THE PARTIES

5. Revise Clothing Inc. is a corporation duly organized and existing pursuant to the
laws of New Jersey with an office and a principal place of business located at 215 W.40™ Street,
2™ Floor, New York, NY 10018.

6. Upon information and belief, Defendant Wet Jeans is a corporation duly
organized and existing pursuant to the laws of the State of New York with an office and a
principal place of business located at 1407 Broadway, Suite 707, New York, NY 10018.

7. Upon information and belief, Defendant Jean City USA is a corporation duly
organized and existing pursuant to the laws of the State of Florida with an office and a principal
place of business located at 8030 w.26" Avenue, Hialeah, FL 33063.

8. Ej'pon iﬁformation and belief, Wet Jeans is the distributor for Jean City USA.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

9. This action arises under the Lanham Trademark Act of 1946, 15 U.S.C. §1051 et

seq. (the “Lanham Act”) and under the common law of the State of New York.
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10.  This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1121(a), 1331
and 1338. The Court has jurisdiction over the related state law claims vnder principles of
ancillary, pendent and supplemental jurisdiction and pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367.

11.  Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391 because the claims
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asserted arise in this district. :

ALLEGATIONS COMMON TO
ALL CAUSES OF ACTION

A. Plaintiff’s VANILLA STAR® trademark

12.  Plaintiff commenced use of the mark VANILLA STAR® in 2002 and today uses
it in commerce on a variety of apparel items. (A copy of a printout from the United States Patent
and Trademark Office detailing the particulars of Plaintiff’s registration is attached hereto as
Exhibit A). Plamtiff has an operational web site located at www.vanillastarjeans.com.

13, Plaintiff’s VANILLA STAR® merchandise is sold nationally in specialty and
boutique stores, as well as in department stores.

14.  To date, Plaintiff has enjoyed substantial sales of its VANILLA STAR®
merchandise, grossing over $100 million dollars at the retail level for the past three years.

15.  Plaintiff routinely receives a wealth of unsolicited national publicity, most notably
in Woman’s Wear Daily (“WWD”), In Touch Magazine, OK! Magazine, Style, Star and others.
(Representative examples of magazines that featured Plaintiff’s VANILLA STAR® merchandise
are attachéd hereto as Exhibit B).

16.  Plaintiff has also expended a significant amount of time and money advertising

and promoting the brand since the date of first use. In fact, Plaintiff advertises on buses, public
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telephone kiosks and even on a billboard in the heavily trafficked Times Square area in mid-town

Manhattan and generally spends hundreds of thousands of dollars on advertising and promotion.
17. Because of Plaintiff’s substantial and continuous use, as well as the favorable

publicity attached to Plaintiff’s products sold under its mark, Plaintiff has built up significant

coodwill in its VANELACS:%ieRJ@C%r?E;&/ﬁa(r)E}G-DC Document1  Filed 11/27/2007 Page 4 of 17
18.  As aresult of Plaintiff’s efforts, the consuming public associates Plaintiff’s

VANILLA STAR® trademark solely with Plaintiff and has come to expect that goods sold under

that mark will be of the highest quality.

B. Defendants’® Infringing Use of the VANILILA Trademark

19.  Upon information and belief, Defendants are selling, distributing, advertising
and/or promoting clothing under the VANILLA JEANS trademark (“Inﬁ*ingiﬁg Merchandise™).
(A picture of one of Defendants’ apparel items is attached hereto as Exhibit C).

20.  Upon information and belief, Defendants had made no commercial trademark use
m commerce of any mark encompassing the term VANILLA prior to the date of first use set forth
in Plaintiff’s registration for VANILLA STAR®.

21.  Upon information and belief, Defendants’ do not own a trademark registration or
application for the mark VANILLA or VANILLA JEANS anywhere in the world.

22.  Because the term “jeans” in VANILLA JEANS is descriptive of the apparel items
sold under that mark and has no trademark value, Defendant’s alleged mark is essentially
VANILLA, the most dominant and recognizable term in Plaintiff’s mark, VANILLA STAR®.

23.  Inor about September 2007, Plaintiff learned that Defendants were offering
apparel] items bearing the mark VANILLA JEANS. In fact, Plaintiff’s buyers and other buyers

alike have been confused into thinking that Defendant’s VANILLA JEANS brand and goods sold
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under that moniker were manufactured, sold, authorized or sponsored by Plaintiff when no such
relationship exists.

24.  Indeed, some buyers who previously purchased Defendants’ Infringing
Merchandise have visited Plaintiff’s showroom asking to purchase clothing at Defendants’
prices. In addition, one of%?gi%t%f:fg s7 ;%\éig%%:rLSG];Es%etuggg L&lrg?crgazlldiseiiillet(\ng_ %/czcgszic?l?zthatpage > otL7
it thought was Plaintiff’s when, in fact, it was Defendants’.

25. Accordingly, on September 17, 2007, Plaintiff sent a cease and desist letter to
Defendant Wet Jeans advising it of Plaintiff’s superior rights in and to the mark VANILLA
STAR® and demanding, inter alia, that they immediately cease distributing, advertising and
promoting the Infringing Merchandise. (A copy of the letter sent by counsel for Plaintiff is
attached hereto as Exhibit D).

26.  Inresponse to Plaintiff’s letter, Defendants agreed to immediately stop producing
merchandise under the VANILLA JEANS mark and advised that it would sell off its existing in-
store merchandise. (A copy of the letter sent by counsel for Defendants is attached hereto as
Exhibit E).

27. On October 16, 2007, Plaintiff sent a follow up letter to counsel for Defendants
requesting that they provide Plaintiff with a time commitment for the sell-off and a list of the
stores where Defendants’ merchandise was shipped. (A copy of the letter sent by counsel for
Plaintiff is attached hereto as Exhibit F). No response to-this letter was received.

28. Now; over two months since Plaintiff initially contacted Defendants regarding its
infringing activity, Plaintiff continues to see Defendants’ Infringing Merchandise in stores and

continues to learn of buyers who mistakenly believe that Defendants’ apparel emanates from

Plaintiff.
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29.  Upon information and belief, Defendants’ Infringing Merchandise is marketed and
sold to the same consumers as Plaintiff’s products at the same or similar price points as

Plaintiff’s products.

30.  To be sure, Defendants’ use of a mark that is substantially similar to Plaintiff’s
famous mark to compete “%t?lslglgn?gﬂg 1\1/1 %I?ei%p%a?g 1'11d530’ﬂ(':}l;I rlgssn;h%eadyiicl)iqfu%gc/izcggs?fgers Page oot
into thinking that Defendants’ Infringing Merchandise emanates from or is associated with
Plaintiff and its VANILLA STAR® branded products and will continue to cause such confusion
if unabated.
31.  Upon information and belief, Defendants” use of the mark VANILLA JEANS
through, inter alia, the promotion and sale of clothing bearing the mark VANILLA JEANS is
willful, having now been accomplished with knowledge of Plaintiff’s prior rights in and to the
VANILLA STAR® trademark, with the intent to trade on and benefit from the goodwill
established in the VANILLA STAR® trademark by Plaintiff.

FIRST CLATM FOR RELIEF
(Trademark Infringement Under 15 U.S.C. §1114 ef seq.)

32.  Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges the allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 31 above as
if fully set forth herein,
| 33. By their use of a mark that encompasses the term VANILLA on apparel, )
Defendants are trading on Plaintiff's registered VANILLA STAR® trademark and are
misappropriating the goodwill and reputation which has attached to that trademark.
34.  Defendants’ use of the mark VANILLA JEANS constitutes trademark

infringement of a federally registered trademark and will confuse and deceive customers into
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believing that Defendants and their apparel and advertisements for the same are associated with
and/or authorized by the Plaintiff when no such association exists.

35.  The actions complained of herein are likely to cause confusion, to cause mistake
or to deceive others into erroneously believing that the Infringing Merchandise being advertised
and sold by Defendants arg fftﬁoﬁggd%\gﬁll?c%}gég %y, spl?)?l(s:grrgde g;,lendofsile%db])}]grz Z{ﬁgr%se Page 7 of 17
associated with Plaintiff.

36.  The acts and conduct of Defendants complained of herein constitute willful and
deliberate infringement of Plaintiff’s VANILLA STAR® trademark, and further constitute
infringement of Plaintiff's VANILLA STAR® trademark in violation of Section 32 of the
Lanham Trademark Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1114.

37.  Byreason of all the foregoing, Plaintiff is being damaged by Defendants’ willful
infringement of the VANILLA STAR® trademark in the manner set forth above and will
continue to be dainaged unless Defendants are enjoined from using the mark VANILLA JEANS
or any colorable imitations thereof on apparel items.

38.  Plaintiff will be irreparably injured by the continued acts of Defendants, unless
such acts are immediately enjoined. Plaintiff is entitled to injunctive relief under 15 U.S.C.
§1116 (a).

39.  Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law.

40.  In light of the foregoing, l;laintiff is entiﬂed to injunctive relief prohibiting
Defendant from selling, advertising, manufacturing, promoting, distributing the Infringing

Merchandise, and to recover from Defendant all damages it has sustained in an amount to be

determined at trial including but not limited to attorneys” fees and all gains, profits and
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advantages obtained by Defendants as a result thereof, in an amount not yet known, as well as the

costs of this action pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a).

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Unfair Competition and
False Designation of Origin Under 15 U.S.C. §1125(a)
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41.  Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges the allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 40 above as

if fully set forth herein.

42.  The actions complained of herein constitute false designations of origin that are
likely to cause consumer confusion or to deceive the public as to the affiliation, connection or
association of Plaintiff and/or the VANILLA STAR® trademark with Defendants, and as to the
origin, spensorship and/or approval of Defendants’ Infringing Merchandise.

43.  The foregoing acts of Defendants constitute unfair competition in violation of
Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §1125(a).

44.  Byreason of all the foregoing, Plaintiff is being damaged by Defendants’ wiliful
infringement of the VANILLA STAR® trademark in the manner set forth above and will
continue to be damaged unless Defendants are immediately enjoined from using or selling or
distributing products bearing the VANILLA JEANS trademark or any substantially similar

variation thereof.

45.  Plaintiff will be irreparably injured by the continued acts of Defendants, unless

such acts are immediately enjoined.
46.  Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law.
47.  In addition to injunctive relief, Plaintiff is entitled to all damages it has sustained

in an amount to be determined af trial including but not limited to Defendants’ profits and gains
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as aresult of their unfair competition described above, attorneys fees and costs of this action.
Plaintiff is also entitled to the destruction of the Infringing Merchandise under §1118.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Trademark Dilution Under 15 U.S.C. §1125 (c))

48.  Plaintiff repegisandyp-allenss thepliogations imRaregraphsidhroughrAdabove aage 9 of 17
if fully set forth herein.

49.  Plaintiff's VANILLA STAR® mark is famous marks within the meaning of 15
U.S.C. §1125(c)(1) and has been famous prior to Defendants’ conduct complained of herein.

50.  Plaintiff's VANILLA STAR® trademark is a famous mark by virtue of its
substantial inherent and acquired distinctiveness, Plaintiff's extensive use, advertising and
publicity of the marks that has resulted in strong and widespread recognition of the mark, and by
virtue of the registration of the mark on the Principal Trademark Register of the United States
Patent and Trademark Office.

51.  Defendants’ use of the VANILLA STAR® trademark on and in connection with
the sale and distribution of apparel items dilutes the strength and distinctive quality of Plaintiff's
famous VANILLA STAR® mark and lessens the capacity df the VANILLA STAR® mark to
1dentify and distinguish Plaintiff’s products.

52.  The acts and conduct complained of herein constitute willful and deliberate
dilution of Plaintiff's VANILLA STAR® trademark.

53.  The foregoing acts of Defendants constitute a violation of the Federal anti-dilution
statute, Lanham Trademark Act 43(c), 15 U.S.C. §1125(c).

54.  Byreason of all the foregoing, Plaintiff is being damaged by Defendants’ willful

dilution of the VANILLA STAR® mark in the manner set forth above and will continue to be
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damaged unless Defendants are immediately enjoined from using a confusingly similar
designation.
55.  Plaintiff will be irreparably injured by the continued acts of Defendants, unless

such acts are enjoined.
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56.  Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law.
57. In addition to injunctive relief, because Defendants’ violation is willful, Plaintiff
is entitled to all damages it has sustained in an amount to be determined at trial including but not
limited to Defendants’ profits and gains, attorneys fees and costs of this action, as well as

destruction of the Infringing Merchandise pursuant to §1118.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Trademark Infringement — NY Gen. Bus. Law §133)

58.  Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges the allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 57 above as
if fully set forth herein.

59. In addition to its federal trademark registration for the mark VANILLA STAR®,
by virtue of its use in commerce, Plaintiff has acquired common law trademark rights in its
VANILLA STAR® trademark in connection with, among other things, apparel.

60. The actions of Defendants herein complained of are likely to create confusion and
mistake and deceive consumers into believing that Defendants’ Infringing Merchandise is
authorized by, licensed by, sponsored by or otherwise associated with Plaintiff and/or its
common law rights in the VANILLA STAR® trademark.

61.  The foregoing acts of Defendants constitute willful and deliberate infringement of
Plaintiff’s VANILLA STAR® trademark in violation of the common law of the State of New

York and NY Gen. Bus. Law §133.
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62. By reason of all the foregoing, Plaintiff is being damaged by Defendants’ willful
infringement of the VANILLA STAR® trademark in the marner set forth above and will
continue to be damaged unless Defendants are immediately enjoined from using the confusingly
similar mark VANILLA JEANS.
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63.  Plaintiff will be irreparably injured by the continued acts of Defendants, unless
such acts are enjoined.
64.  Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law.
65.  In addition to injunctive relief, Plaintiff is entitled to all damages it has sustained
in an amount to be determined at frial including but not limited to Defendants’ profits and gains

as a result of their infringing acts described above, attorneys fees and costs of this action.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Common Law Unfair Competition)

66.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges the allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 65 of the
Complaint as if fully set forth at length herein.

67.  Plaintiff owns and enjoys common law trademark rights in the VANILLA
STAR® trademark in Ohio and throughout the United States.

68.  Defendants’ unlawful infringement in Plaintiff’s common law rights in and to the
VANILLA STAR® trademark were intended to capitalize on Plamtiff’s goodwill .for
Defendants’ own pecuniary gain. Plaintiff has expended substantial time, resources and effort to
obtain an excellent reputation for itself and its VANILLA STAR® trademark. As aresult of
Plaintiff’s efforts, Defendants are now unjustly enriched and are benefiting from property rights

that rightfully belong to Plaintiff.
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69.  Defendants’ use of the VANILLA JEANS trademark has caused and is likely to
continue to cause consumer confusion as to the source of Defendants’ clothing, all to the
detriment of Plaintiff.

70. Defendants’ acts are willful, deliberate, and intended to confuse the public and to

Case 1:07-cv-10616-DC  Document1l  Filed 11/27/2007 Page 12 of 17
injure Plaintiff.

71.  Defendants’ acts constitute unfair competition under Ohio common law.

72.  Plaintiff has been irreparably harmed and will continue to be irreparably harmed
as a result of Defendants’ unlawful acts unless Defendants are permanently enjoined from their
unlawful conduct.

73.  Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law.

74.  Inlight of the foregoing, Plaintiff is entitled to injunctive relief prohibiting
Defendants from using its VANILLA JEANS trademark, and to recover all damages, including
attorneys’ fees, that Plaintiff has sustained and will sustain, and all gains, profits and advantages
obtained by Defendants as a result of their infringing acts alleged above in an amount not yet
known, and the costs of this action.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Violation of New York’s Anti-Dilution Statute
New York General Business Law Section 360-(I)

75.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges the allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 74 of the

Complaint as if fully set forth herein.
76. Plaintiff’s VANILLA STAR® trademark is distinctive in the State of New York

by virtue of its substantial inherent and acquired distinctiveness, extensive use in the State of
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New York and the extensive advertising and wide spread publicity of the marks in the State of
New York.

77.  As aresult of the VANILLA STAR® trademark ’s substantial inherent and
acquired distinctiveness, extensive use in the State of New York and the extensive advertising
and publicity of the marks b oo Stare ot Nos ?Ec?ﬂg, ho WANTL LA STAR® itk fas booemme -2¢ -2 0147
strong and is famous.

78.  Plamtiff's VANILLA STAR® trademark, which Defendants essentially copied,
has become a distinctive symbol of goodwill that has been engendered in Plaintiff’s products and
represents significant and valuable proprietary assets to Plaintiff.

79. Defendants’ unauthorized use of Plaintiff’s valuable trademark will dilute, tarnish
and blur that mark.

80.  The actions of Defendants complained of herein have already injured and are
likely to continue to injure the business reputation and dilute the distinctive quality of Plaintiff’s
famous VANILLA STAR® trademark.

81.  The foregoing acts of Defendants constitute dilution in violation of Section 360-
(1) of the New York General Business Law.

82.  Byreason of the foregoing, Plaintiff has been and is being damaged by
Defendants’ unauthorized and illegal use of a confusingly similar mark to that of the VANILLA
STAR® markdinnthe manner set forth above and will continue to be damaged unless Defendants
are immediately enjoined under Section 360-1 of the New York General Business Law from
using the VANILLA JEANS mark or a substantially similar variation thereof.

83.  Plaintiff will be irreparably injured by the continued acts of Defendants, unless

such acts are enjoined.
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84.  Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law.
85.  Plaintiff in entitled to injunctive relief.
SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Unlawful Deceptive Acts and Practices
New York General Business Law Section 349)
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86. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 85 of the
Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

87. Defendants, without Plaintiff’s authorization or consent, and having knowledge of
Plaintiff’s well-known and prior rights in and to the VANILLA STAR® trademark and the fact
that Defendants” apparel products is confusingly similar to the products that Plaintiff
manufactures and sells and is famous for, have manufactured, advertised, distributed, offered for
sale and/or sold apparel items to the consuming public in direct competition with Plaintiff.

88.  Defendants’ use of the VANILLA JEANS marks is likely to cause and is causing
confusion, mistake and deception among the general purchasing public as to the origin of
Defendants’ merchandise, and is likely to deceive the public into believing the merchandise
being sold by Defendants originates from, are associated with, or are otherwise authorized by
Plaintiff.

89.  Defendants’ deceptive acts and practices involve public sales activities of a
recurring nature. -
90.  Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law, and if Defendants’ activities are not

enjoined, Plaintiff will continue to suffer irreparable harm and injury to its goodwill and

reputation.
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91.  In addition to injunctive relief, Plaintiff is entitled to all damages it has sustained
in an amount to be determined at trial but not less than Defendants’ profits and gains, attorneys’
fees and costs of this action.

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff respectfully prays that this Court enter judgment in its favor
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and against Defendants as follows:

A Granting temporary, preliminary and permanent injunctive relief restraining
Defendants, their agents, servants, employees, officers, associates, attorneys, and
all persons acting by, through, or in concert with any of them, from (a) using the
VANILLA JEANS trademark or a mark that is substantially similar thereto,
comumnitting any act that falsely represents or which has the effect of falsely
representing that Defendants® goods are licensed by, authorized by, offered by,
produced by, sponsored by, or in any way associated with Plaintiff, (b) otherwise
infringing Plaintiff’s registered and common law VANILLA STAR® trademark,
(c) unfairly competing with Plaintiff;

B. Ordering Defendants to report to the Court, in writing under oath with a copy of
Plaintiff’s attorneys within thirty (30) days of service of notice of any Orders
issued hereunder, setting forth in a detail the manner and form in which
Defendants have complied with any such Order;

C. Ordering, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1118, that all fabrics, products, labels, signs,
prints, packages, wrappers, receptacles, and advertisements in the possession of
Defendants béaring VANILLA JEANS trademark, or any reproduction,

counterfeit, copy, or colorable imitation thereof, and all plates, molds, matrices,

and other means of making the same, be delivered up and destroyed; that
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Defendants make a diligent effort to recall all of their fabrics and products bearing
the VANILLA JEANS trademark already distributed so that they, too, may be
destroyed; and that Defendants file with this Court and serve on Plaintiff ten (10)
days after the issuance of an injunction by the Court, a report in writing under oath
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setting forth in detail the manner and form in which Defendants have complied
with the foregoing;
Awarding actual damages suffered by Plaintiff as a result of Defendants’ acts;
Ordering an accounting by Defendants of all gains, profits and advantages derived
from their wrongful acts;
Awarding Plaintiff all of Defendants’ profits and all damages sustained by
Plaintiff as a result of Defendants’ wrongful acts, and such other compensatory
damages as the Court determines to be fair and appropriate, pursuant to 15 U.S.C.
§ 1117(a);
Awarding applicable interest, costs, disbursements and attorneys’ fees, pursuant to
15U.S.C. § 1117,

Awarding Plaintiff such other and further relief as the Court deems just and

proper.
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DEMAND FOR A JURY TRIAL

Pursuant to Rule 38(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff hereby demands

a trial by jury as to all claims in this litigation.
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Dated: November 27, 2007
New York, NY

PRYOR CASHMAN LLP

. B&%Be,|Esq. (BR-2740)
Nicole E. Kaplan, Esq. (NK-6478)
410 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10022
(212) 421-4100
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